
    

 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
July 11, 2013 

 

 
 
 

  

The July 11, 2013 Board Meeting of the Pleasant Hill Recreation & Park District Board of 

Directors was called to order by Board Chair Glover at 6:05 p.m. in the Conference Room at the 
Administration Office.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Board Chair Glover led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL 

BOARD PRESENT:  Glover, Donaghu, Bonato, Shess, Sterrett  
 
STAFF PRESENT:      Berggren, Lischeske, Blair, Young, Miller, Bradley, Spatz, Luke, Cutrovo 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 

 
TO CONSIDER WINE, WOMEN, AND SHOES FUNDRAISING EVENT (ACTION) 
On June 19, 2013, Kimberly Miller, Director of Business Development for Wine, Women and Shoes, 

along with District staff presented to the Board information regarding this fundraising event.  This 
would be an exclusive event in Contra Costa County, as an ongoing fundraising opportunity for the 
District with the potential of raising thousands of dollars every year. 

 
Recreation Superintendent Tina Young reviewed the proposed details of the event with the Board. 
 

Board Member Sterrett asked Young what the actual budget for the event looked like in terms of 
revenue the District will receive. Young explained that the first year may not be a huge financial gain 
for the District, but it will be a good event to showcase the new Community Center and put the 

District on the map for the event. 
 
Board Member Bonato stated that she would like to see a proposed budget for the event.  She is 

looking for assurance that the event can be planned successfully.  She asked that staff time be 
included in the budget information.  She is concerned that District staff will be working more than 
they should on the event, and she has concerns of the impact of the event on the District’s budget. 

 
Board Member Shess asked if any District staff will be attending one of these events before the 
District event.  Young explained that she will be attending the event in Napa this month.  Shess 

stated that the District needs to take a “leap of faith” on this event. He feels that it is important that 
the District showcases the new Community Center. 
 
Board Member Donaghu stated that he has concerns about having a large enough “draw” to the 

event.  He stated that he is willing to have staff prove the event can be done successfully. 
 
Board Chair Glover stated that he felt outreach is key for this event.  He asked if there would be a 

sponsor committee, then a sub committee under the sponsor committee.  Young explained that 
once staff begins working with the Wine Women & Shoes group the committees will become more 
apparent.  He commented that he has a lot of faith in the staff to make this event successful. 

 



 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – July 11, 2013        2 

 

Upon motion of Board Members Bonato & Donaghu, the Board approved to authorize staff to 

proceed with contracting with the Wine, Women and Shoes organization as a fundraiser towards our 
FF&E with the upfront anticipated expenses coming from the FF& E funds, with the condition that 
the Board receives a budget by the next meeting and that there is a commitment from staff to track 

staff hours for this event.   
  
TO CONSIDER PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF 249 GREGORY LANE “THE LITTLE 

HOUSE” (ACTION) 
The sale of the “Little House” or 249 Gregory Lane generated just over $350,000.  Board Chair 
Glover stated that he had asked the General Manager to develop a list of options/alternatives 

for use of the proceeds from the sale. 
 
The General Manager is recommending retaining all of the $350,000 for the FF&E in order to 

reduce future fundraising efforts.  The hope would be to use the Wine, Women & Shoes event 
for FF&E fundraising to effectively make payments to the $300,000 existing CSDA loan. 
 

Board Member Bonato commented that she had asked Accounting Supervisor Blair to report on 
the process for paying of the loan.  Blair explained that there would be limitations to making 
payments on the loan, and that it would be the most beneficial to pay it off at the end of the 

three year term of the loan.  He stated that since the money from the sale of the property is in 
the reserve fund right now, it would be better to make a decision once the final numbers are in 
for this budget year.  The Board was in agreement to pay off the loan at the end of the three 

year term.  The Board tabled this item until more information from the fiscal year budget has 
been collected.   
 

UPDATES ON BOND PROJECTS   
 
The General Manager made the following comments:  

 
SENIOR CENTER/TEEN CENTER 

   The HVAC work will be done the first week of August.  

    CSI will have an updated project budget for the Board by July 19th.  
 COMMUNITY CENTER 

  The sheet rock work will begin on Monday along with the first of the glass work. 
  The City of Pleasant Hill has signed off on the plumbing and electrical work. 

Board Member Bonato asked on the status of the change order for the joist at the Community Center.  
The General Manager stated that the District is closer to mediation on this issue, and he hopes to have 
an update at the next board meeting.  Bonato asked when an updated change order report will be given 

to the Board.  The General Manager said he will have it to the Board by July 22nd. 
PLEASANT OAKS PARK 

  The project is still on schedule. 

  All of the off-hauling is almost completed. 
a.  Alternative Ideas for Playground Area 

The General Manager reported that currently the pre-school age appropriate playground is being 
installed at Pleasant Oaks Park as part of the overall project by Goodland Landscape.  The age 
appropriate playground for the elementary age was bid at $160,000 and this alternate was not 

selected by the Board.  He reported that the current plan is to have this open area prepared for play 
equipment in the future by including the area in the underground drainage.  The General Manager 
commented that Bond Coordinator Lynn Spatz and Architect Phil Abey are recommending that the 

District hold off on any decision on this area until more work on the overall project has been 
completed. 
 



 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – July 11, 2013        3 

 

Board Member Bonato commented that she understood the recommendation but would like a sense 

of potential playground items and the cost for these items.  Board Chair Glover asked if there are 
product samples available for the Board to look at.  Spatz was present at the meeting and 
commented that there are catalogs available that show equipment details including pricing.  She 

commented that there should be a theme to the playground equipment.  The Board liked the idea of 
circulating catalogs to the Board Members showing equipment options. 
 

The Board complimented Bond Facilities Coordinator Carrie Miller on her weekly pictures of the Bond 
project sites.  
 

Board Chair Glover started the regular meeting at 7:23 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (ACTION)  

a. TO APPROVE BILLS TO BE PAID 
 
Upon motion of Board Members Shess & Donaghu, the Board approved the Consent Calendar.   

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
  PRELIMINARY BUDGET FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 

 
No public was present to comment on this item.  The Public Hearing was closed. 
 

TO CONSIDER BOARD REQUESTED BUDGET ITEMS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 
(ACTION) 
The General Manager stated that the following items were requested by the Board for consideration 

to add to the Fiscal Year 2013-14 budget.  He commented that the most recent proposed budget for 
Fiscal Year 2013-14 has unallocated funds of $72,130 and that the Board can consider the extra 
$100,000 made through the sale of the Little House, 249 Gregory Lane in considering these budget 
items.  The items are as follows: 

 New Marketing/Program Development Position 
The total cost for this position would range between $59,000-76,951. 

The Board reviewed the breakdown for this position as presented by Accounting Supervisor Mark 
Blair. 
 

Board Member Shess asked how much research staff has done for this position.  The General 
Manager commented that a 20 hour a week person has been hired so staff will be evaluating this 
position before researching a full time position further.  Shess commented that he feels this is an 

important area for the District and it should not be dropped. 
 
Board Member Bonato commented that her vision for this position would be for someone to help 

staff come up with new programming ideas. 
 

 Cost of Living Increase 

The General Manager stated that employees will be receiving a .25% net salary increase after a 
2.75% contribution to PERS for Fiscal Year 2013-14.  He commented that there has been discussion 
to consider an additional 1% or 2% cost of living increase.  He said the total cost for the District for 

each 1% COLA increase is $23,551. 
 

 



 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – July 11, 2013        4 

 

 Salary Increases 

The General Manager stated that there had been discussion by the Board of a lump sum or a 
“bonus” enhancement to “top performers” within the staff.  He commented that the total cost of this 

item would be comparable to COLA increases, but instead of across the board increases, certain 
positions would be given salary increases based on job performance. 
 

Board Member Bonato commented that she would be interested in a combination of a COLA 
increase and a bonus bump built into employee positions.  
 

Board Member Sterrett commented that she does not think bonuses to specific employees are fair to 
the employees or the General Manager.  She would like to see updated comparables for positions.  
The General Manager explained that job comparables are completed every other year, but the 

money is not always in the budget to act on the comparables. 
 
Board Chair Glover commented that he would like to see staff work on job comparables again. 

 
 Board Agenda Software 

The General Manager stated that the Board and Staff have been reviewing the options available to 

have the Board Agenda and other materials for the public more accessible. After reviewing proposals 
the proposal from the Granicus Company would be the recommended application.  Currently the City 
of Pleasant Hill uses this agenda software company. The General Manager commented that the total 

cost for Fiscal Year 2013-14 would be $18,450 to implement this software. 
 
Board Member Shess commented that there are elements to this that fall into marketing.  He 

commented that it would be good branding for the District.  Board Member Bonato stated that she 
felt it would be interesting to discuss with the City about their potential savings using the Granicus 
software program. 

 
 Increase Hours of Fundraiser Position 

The General Manager stated that there had been discussion to increase the hours of the Fundraising 
position from the current 10 hours to 30 hours.  He commented that the cost of this increase would 
be approximately $24,000 annually.  He said another option would increase the position from 10 
hours to 20 hours which would be an increase of $12,000 annually. 

 
Board Member Bonato questioned if this position should be in the general budget or in the FF&E.  
She also questioned if there will be a return on this position. 

 
 Maintenance Management Software 

The General Manager stated that Building Maintenance Superintendent Carrie Miller has been 
researching maintenance management software programs for the District. This would be used for 
data and record keeping in the building maintenance department.  The research has not been 

completed, but the costs will be approximately $15,000-$25,000 annually. 
 
Board Member Bonato suggested that this item would be something for the Oversight Working 

Group to look into. She stated that she feels there would be too much staff time involved in 
implementing the software. 

 Contracting Services for Park Maintenance 

The General Manager is recommending that the Oversight Working Group look more closely at this 
item. 

 Furniture, Fixtures, & Equipment 

The General Manager stated that he would like to utilize additional funds to complete the FF&E 
efforts. 



 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – July 11, 2013        5 

 

 

 Reduce CSDA Short Term Loan 
The General Manager stated that the Board could utilize the additional funds for paying off the CSDA 

short term loan. 
 
From the nine budget items listed the General Manager is recommending providing employees with 

a 2% cost of living increase, and purchasing the Building Maintenance Management Software. 
 
In general the Board felt all items were important, but is concerned about having the necessary 

funds available to pay for all the items.  The Board felt revisiting the budget in November to make 
modifications would be a good idea. 
 

Board Member Sterrett made a motion to direct staff to prepare the final budget for Fiscal Year 
2013-14 with the change showing a 2% COLA increase for the employees totaling $47,102. 
 

Board Member Bonato made a substitute motion which included Sterretts motion but also included 
asking staff to find a savings in the proposed budget of at least 50%. 
 

There was no second for the substitute motion.   
 
Board Member Donaghu seconded the original motion which was approved by the Board. 
 

Board Member Donaghu commented that he would like to see the employees receive the COLA 
retroactive back to July 1, 2013. 
Board Member Bonato commented that she would like the Board to continue to look at all the 

proposed budget items and would like staff to continue to look into funding for these items. 
 
TO SELECT BOARD MEMBERS FOR THE AUDIT COMMITTEE (ACTION) 

The General Manager commented that as recommended from the recent Grand Jury Report #1311, 
“Assessing Fiscal Risk” the District will appoint a formal Audit Committee to provide direct oversight 
to District operation and financial management to ensure that Internal Control deficiencies are 

remedied if/when one is noted by our external auditors. 
 
The General Manager is recommending that the full board would constitute the committee. 

 
Upon motion of Board Members Donaghu & Bonato, the Board approved that the complete Board of 
Directors would be the Audit Committee.    

 
BOARD ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REQUESTS TO STAFF 
 

Sterrett made the following announcements/questions: 
 The City is looking to re-organize their Arts Committee.  If someone from the City contacts 

the District about this, she would like to be on the committee. 

 The Library is doing a County wide survey.  She is encouraging everyone to take part in the 
survey. 

 She commented that there is no code of conduct in emergency situations for the Board to 
reconstitute themselves.  She will be researching this further and would like to revisit this 

item in a closed session. 
 
Donaghu made the following announcements/questions: 

 He complimented District staff on the 4th of July parade float. 
 The Chamber Mixer on July 17th will be at Zachary’s Pizza in Pleasant Hill. 



 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes – July 11, 2013        6 

 

 

Bonato made the following announcements/questions: 
 She complimented staff on how beautiful the park looked for the 4th of July festivities.  She 

did receive a comment from someone in the public that they would like the kids to have 
access to the Sprayground on the 4th of July.  She would like to see staff look into this for the 
future.  

 She had also seen the article about the Library and would like to see the library incorporated 
more into the planning at the Teen Center.  

 She would like to know when the art work for the bus will be coming back to the Board. 
 She had heard that there have been problems with vandals at Dinosaur Hill.  Bradley 

commented that it is a constant problem and it would be nice to have more police presence 
in that area.  

 She commented that the AT&T cell tower issue is back, and the City has given AT&T a drop 

dead date to have their paperwork in for any proposals.  AT&T has contacted the District on 
potential District-owned sites.  She would like to be kept in the loop on this issue. 

 

Shess made the following announcements/questions:  
 He commented that the 4th of July activities were very fun. 

 
Glover made the following announcements/questions:  

 He thanked District staff for their work on the 4th of July parade.  

 He would like to discuss ideas for the Community Service Day ahead of time. 
 He commented that his mother received very good customer service from the front line staff 

at the District office.   
 

STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS 
The General Manager made the following announcements: 
 

 He stated that Rodger’s Ranch is in the process of changing their name to the Rodgers 
Ranch Heritage Center.  Board Member Bonato asked about signage for the new name.  The 
General Manager said that staff will be looking into this. 

 He distributed flyers for the District’s new Wildlife Camp which will be held one day a week at 
the Rodger’s Ranch site.   

 He announced that the District had received good news on our workers compensation report.  
Due to the good experience modification factor, our premium is lower.  

 He received a Certificate of Recognition for the District’s participation in the American Cancer 

Society Relay for Life.  
 He said that the agenda for the joint meeting with the City of Pleasant Hill on July 22, 2013 

will be coming from the City. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
Board Chair Glover adjourned the meeting at 9:18 p.m. 
 
 

 
________________________________  
Robert B. Berggren, Clerk of the Board 


